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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chethana Healthcare Solutions
Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in
Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including material accounting policies and other explanatory information(hereinafter referred to as
the “financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,profit (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with

the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be _
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matemlﬁ ( r,
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A" a detailed description of Auditor's responsibilities for Audit of the
Financial Statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to

the extent applicable.
2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the company has not
taken backups of books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic
mode on Sundays, in a server physically located in India and except for the matters stated in
paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014. “SHI &
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The reservation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph 2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(8) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C".

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(3) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year. il & OO\




vi.

The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from April 1, 2023.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used two
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which do not have a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility either at application level or
database level, except for one accounting software where the audit trail feature at
the application level was enabled from September 2024. Accordingly, we are
unable to comment whether the audit trail feature has been tampered, and
whether the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory

requirements for record retention prescribed under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Further, where enabled, audit trail feature has operated throughout the relevant
period for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software. Also, during
the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of such accounting software.

3. Inour opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year, is within the limits prescribed under Section

197

read with Schedule V of the Act and the rules there under.

For M/S Joshi & Company
Chartered Accountant
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CHETHANA HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For M/S Joshi & Company

Chartered Accountant =
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CHETHANA HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

(a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, and relevant details of right-of-use
assets.

B. The Company has no intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph

3(i)(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has a planned programme of physically verifying Property, Plant and Equipment
over a period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance therewith the Company has physically
verified a few blocks of assets in the current year. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties.
Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) during the year. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made there under. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has a system of physical verification of inventory whereby all items of inventory

(b)

are physically verified over a period of time at regular intervals during the year. Discrepancies, if
any between physical inventory and book records are adjusted in the books as and when the
verifications and corresponding reconciliations are carried out. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification, coverage and procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such
physical verification of inventories,

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 50 Million in aggregate
from a Bank on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly statements are filed with the
Bank which are(in some cases) not in agreement with the books of accounts is as below:
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(X in Millions)

Amount as
Name :;m:;nt reported in Reason for
Quarter of Particulars P the quarterly | Difference | material
books of
Bank return/ discrepancies
account
statement
Inventory 55.35 55.33 0.02 Reclassification &
30 June Axis
Creditors 23.69 30.00 6.31 period end closing
2024 Bank
Debtors 45.67 40.04 5.63 adjustments
30 i Inventory | 63.41 63.07 0.34 Reclassification &
xis
September it Creditors 29.83 31.56 173 period end closing
an
2024 Debtors 48.35 48.34 0.01 adjustments
31 o Inventory 61.55 60.98 0.57 Reclassification &
XIS
December fiak Creditors 17.49 18.67 1.18 period end closing
an
2024 Debtors 44,00 44,00 0.00 adjustments
Inventory 57.45 56.92 0.53 Reclassification &
31 March | Axis
Creditors 24.85 25.93 1.07 yearend closing
2025 Bank
Debtors 42.38 42.38 0.00 adjustments

iii. According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any Loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any
other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the order are not applicable to
the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, are applicable and accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits from the public nor any amounts which are deemed to be deposits, within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013and the rules framed there under.
Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company. Also, there are no amounts outstanding as on March 31, 2025, which are in the nature
of deposits.

vi. The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as
the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are

not applicable to the Company.

vii.
(a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value ;.
added tax during the year since effective July 1, 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumé}i X

into GST. [/ \Z\
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statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities during
the year, though there have been slight delays in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other
statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and other statutory dues which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in Tax Assessments of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which
has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

IX.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to the lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was
raised by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence reporting under
the Clause 3(ix)(e) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture. Hence, reporting under
the Clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

X.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information explanation given to us, the Company did not
raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Hence, ~_
the provisions stated in paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.. { ' \‘ D
xi. < /. %
(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in ak{'ﬁ)‘:l&ﬁzg"‘"'
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the mformhﬁnh and
explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Compan,y

has been noticed or reported during the year in the course of our audit.
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(b) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with

the Central Government. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii)(a)
to (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by applicable accounting standards. Further, the Company is not
required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act.

Xiv.
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors, for the period under audit, issued
till the date of our audit report.

Xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with its directors and accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section
1920f the Companies Act, 2013 in clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

XVi.
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934(2 of 1934) and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)does not have any Core
Investment Company (as part of its group. Accordingly, the provisions stated under clause
3(xvi)(d) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii. Based on the overall review of the financial statements, the Company has not incurred any cash
losses in the current financial year.

Y 1 OS7 R
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financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xX. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under
paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have any
subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not
applicable.

For M/S Joshi & Company
Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Registration No. 0130018
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Date: May 24, 2025
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THEFINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CHETHANA HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph2(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Chethana Healthcare Solutions
Private Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Chethana
Healthcare Solutions Private Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) (the
“Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
“TOSIN
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Standalone Balance Shest as at 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otharwise stated)

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assats
Proparty, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Goodwlll
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade recelvables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Uabilities
Non-<current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease llabilities
Deferred tax liability (net)
Pravisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabllities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Ijtotal cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
ii)total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprise
Other financial llabilities
Other current llabilities
Provisions
Current tax Habilities
Total current labliities
Total liabilities

Total equity and llabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
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Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

162 164
590 0.10
3450 3450
0.89 123
4251 37.47
5745 53.65
3863 40.66
057 0.65
033 0.03
96.98 94.98
139.89 132.46
1.00 1.00
2430 17.66
2530 18.66

15.00 .
460 000
09 160
053 0.84
2104 21
6213 7334
126 010
539 018
1967 26.78
a9 9.66
019 1.02
010 nos
Q.02 0.19
93.55 111.35
114.59 113.79
139.89 132.46

the Board of Directors

Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: US1909KA2019PTC122804




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

e Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Income

Revenue from operation 2 502.85 §21.34
Other income 23 0.15 0.01
Total Income 503.00 521.35
Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade 24 463 40 474 84
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 25 (3.80) 2.38
Employee benefits expense 26 1472 13.89
Finance costs 27 10.15 11.36
Depreciation and amortization expense 28 194 136
Other expenses 29 8.90 9.77
Total expenses 49531 513.60
Profit before tax 7.69 7.75
Tax expense

Current tax 30 208 355
Deferred tax 30 (0.77) 0.56
Total income tax expense 132 4,11
Profit for the year 6.37 3.64
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 035 0.20
Income tax effect (0.09) (0.05)
Total 0.26 0.15
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 0.26 0.15
Total comprehensive income for the year 6.63 3.79
Earnings per share

Basic and diluted Earning per share (In INR) 30 63.72 3639
See accompanying notes to the fimancial statements 1-45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M/s Joshi and Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

CIN: US1909KA2019PTC122804
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity share capital (refer note 14)

For the year ended 31 March 2025
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at 1 April 2024
Changes in equity share capital during the current year
Balance as at 31 March 2024

For the year ended 31 March 2024
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

Balance as at 1 April 2023
Changes in equity share capital during the previous year
For the year ended 31 March 2024

(8) Other equity (refer notw 15)
Particulars

Balance as ot 03 April 2023
Changes during the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 31 March 2024

Balance as at 01 April 2024

Changes during the year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive Income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2025

Seze accompanying notes to the finandal statements 145
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For M/s Joshi and Company
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Partrer \4
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Date:- 24-05-2025
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31 March 2025
No. of shares Amount
1,00,000 100
1,00,000 1.00
31 March 2024
Na. of sharcs Amount

1,00,000 1.00

1,00,000 1.00

Reserve and surplus
Retained earnings

13.87

364

0.15

379
——

17.66

637

026

6.63

24 30

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Uimited
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Director Director

DIN: 09453164 DIN: 01828357
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbal
Date:- 24.05-2025 Date:- 24-05-2025




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millians, uniess otherwise stated)

Particulars

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization axpenses
Net impairment losses on trade raceivables
Provision for claims receivables
Finance cost
Interast on unwinding of security deposits
Gain on termination of Lease

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

(Decrease) in trade payables
(Increase)/Decrease In Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
Increase in other current liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in other financial |labilities
Decrease in other financlal assets

{Increase]/ Decrease in ather current assets
Increase in provisions for amployee benefits
Cash generated from operation

Income tax paid/ refund

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Net cash flows (used In)/generated from investing activities (8)

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Principal payment of lease liabilities

Proceeds of borrowings from related party
Repayment of borrowings to related party
Finance cost

Net cash flows (used In) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+84C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise (Refer note 12)
Cash on hand

Cheques on hand

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
269 .75
194 136
0.63 .19
0.13 :
10.15 1136
(0.07) (001)
(0.08) -
2045 20.64
(2.04) (1.97)
(3.80) 238
134 (27)
317 0.60
(0.88) 675
041 .
(0.30) 650
0.05 0.40
18.40 2660
(2.26) (3.46)
16.14 23.14
(0.40) (0:50)
(0.40) (0.50)
3.7 (8.46)
(1.47) (117)
20,00 .
(20.00) -
(18.13) (11.36)
(15.81) (21.99)
(0.08) 0.65
0.65 0.00
0.57 0.65
057 065
0.57 0.65

demdmmmmmmmm

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance
Cash cradit facility 21.54 3810
Loans from releted parties 51.80 4470
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 5.03 -
78.37 82.80
Movement
Cash flows-cash credit facility ER L] (16.56)
Loans from related parties . 7.10
Interest paid (12.00) (4.46)
Interest expenses 8m 949
Closing Balance
Cash cradit facliity 2533 2154
Loans from related parties 5180 5180
Intarest accrued and due on borrowings 103 5.03
78.16 78.37




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, uniess otherwise stated)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

CIN: US1909KA2019PTC122804

G-

Praveen Mujumdar
Director

DIN: 09400164
Place: Mumbal
Date:- 24-05-2025

LAt

K E Prakash

Director

DIN: 01828357

Place: Mumbal
Date:- 24-05-2025
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Umited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statoments for the year anded 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, uniess ctherwise stated)

As st As ot
—3iMarch2025 31 March 2004
7 Other financial assets
Security denoits 089 18
Total 0.89 13
8 Deferred tax assets/|Nabilities) (ret)
Deferred tax asset on account of
Expenses provided but allowsble I income tax an payment basis
On Ind AS 116 pdjustment 0.01) 0.00
Geatuity & leave encashment 0% an
Expeciad credit lus provieon L) oS
Impact of Section &s oz 001
Provivions for claims. 003
Unabsotbed ioss 2
Fair Value of deposits oos
Timing @ depr ana depr charged in the hooks (181) (1.09)
Unabsorbed dapreciation a2 =
8 Note (ak yol
Particulars Asmt [Charged)/Cred (Charged)/ Asat
01 Apil 2034 RadtaPRL Creditad te OO 31 March 2025
Timing A dopr et l chargad In the books (L.88) (000 = {1.81)
Expenses provided but allowsble in incame tax on payment bass . o2y = o2y
On Ind AS adjustimert . oo - (oo
Gratuity & lesve encashment 023 Q.01 009 01s
Expocted credit loss prowsion oo0s 0% - o
Impost of Section 409 LT ) . oo
Falr Visiue of duposity 008 - 0.08
Net Met deferred tax assets/(abibty) (1601 (5] o.00) g
Avut (Crargedl/Cred  (Churged)/ Asst
01 Apeii 2023  MedioPBL  Credited to OO 31 March 2024
Timing tan g ow harged In the books nen) w02 = )
Expenses provided but allowable in income tax on payment base 00! o.02) - .
On Ind AS Adjustmant . '
Gratuity & lsave sncashment ais 010 uos) B
Espected credit loss proviwon on 067 . 005
Unabrorbed depraciation .
et Net delerred tas assets/(Nability) 1100 (o57) foos) (181)
Aswt Avat
_3iMorch 2625 31 March 2034
§ Non-current tax sssets/current tax liabifity (net)
Advance Tox 109 -
Total 208 -
Provision for tex 211 0.19
233 I-L
10 inventories®
At lower of cost and net realizable value
Irvartory 574! 5165
Total 5748 5165
*iwertary pledged s security by the company (refer note 1H)
11 Trade recebable
Ungecured
Lanuoared good = 088
Conuoered duubtful i 306
42138 an
Less Depected loss aliowances B {308
w e rr—— ‘4
Further classified ax:
Recavvable tram related parties (Refer note 2] .
Recevable from sEhen 38.63 4086
L) 4066
The In for expected credit loss by as follows:-
Opening Bakance 106
oss [N0)

Change [n allowance for expected cradit loss Suring the year
Closing Batance —

ke




Chethana Henlthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notss forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millions, unfess otherwise stated)

Trade recebuable ageing

AS 5t 31 March 2008

Particulars/ Ouw fram the date of ransaction pec year 1-2 years 3ywars  More than § yean Total

{1} Unsiputad trade recefvable - conidered good %93 0.66 s . o w8

(] Undisputed trade bie -Which have signify

Increase In credit sk . :

) Ul trade able - credit - 3 . . - -

{Iv) Undisputed trade receivatile - consdered soutiehul 005 0.0 o0 van a2 i

Iv) Disputad trade rocsivable - considared good . '

Ivl) Disputed trade recelvable - comidered doubitiul - . o . . *

Lesq Allowance for sxpactad cradit los n.os) (000 .0 (048] ER 3]} (£8,)]

Y:l E 0.66 0.7% - .29 me

As 31 31 Maech 2034

Partieutare) Oue frum the dats of trancetion o "":"‘ Llymn  23yews Mesthndyas Tl

(1) Undisputad trade recaivable - comiderad good 2.4 B P e 097 40686

L trade Which have significant

Incrasse in crodit risk

] Undi d trade vadhe - dered douttful 0s? om 012 09 130 108

[¥) Disputed trade % food .

il trade able - dered h . . - -

Lesa: Alowance for expected cedit loss 087} 10.01) 1012 10.96) (130) (3.06)

Total pLNt) 52 2m ose7 - 4088

There we no unbified and not due receivables

M Asat

P, 31 March 2625 33 March 2024
12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash an hand as7? 06

Total = —
13 Other current assets

Balance with service Las authorities 020 .

Prepeld eapenses 008 om

ASvancs to suppiier G.od i

Total (Y] [T R




Chethana Heslthcare Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Fi ial Stat for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

14 Equity Share capital
Particulars Ados Mt
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a, Authorised Share Capital
1,00,000 (31 March 2024:1,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1.00 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00
e s
b. lssued, Subscribed and Pald-up:
1,00,000 (31 March 2024:1,00.000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up 100 1.00
Total 1.00 1.00
. Reconcillation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at As at
Partieulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1.00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
Add; lssued during tha year - - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year L 1.00 1,00,000 1.00

15

d. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The company hat anly one dass of squity shares having par value of Rs 10 per thare mwumlnwnnwmuu In the event of

liquidation of the company, the hoiders of equity shares will be entitied to recelve remaining assets of the Campany, after di of all pr
The distribution will e in proportion to the number of squity thares hald by the sharshalders.
«. Shares held by holding company/ultl holding and/ or thelr subsidlaries/ sssociates
Asat Asat
Name of the shareholder n 2025 2024
No of shares % No of shares %
Holding Company
Entero Healthcare Solutions Umited Including shares held by nominee 1,00,000 100% 1,00,000 100%
1. Detalls of shares held by sharehalders holding mare than 5% of the aggregate shares In the Company
As at As at
Name of the shareholder 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No of shares % No of shares %
Entero Healthcare Solutions Lmited Including shares held by nominee 1,00000 100.00 1.00,000 100.00
f. Shareholding of Promoters at the end of the year
As ot Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Name of the Promoler —
%ofTotal % Change During % Change During
Ne. of Share iy No. of Share % of Total Shares o o
Entero Heal e Sol Umited Including shares
held by nominee 1,00,000 100% 10,000 100%

*Out of total 10,0000 equlty shares, Mr. Prabhat Agrawal hoids 1 equity share Le. 0.00% of total shares. as nomines of Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited.

pNou-nolmmh-mMumwmmﬁ:mﬂd«aﬂmoﬁ-«ﬂ-nmwthwmmdqhwdhﬂmdmdvmm
current year.
., No ¢lass of shares have heen bought back by the Company during the year of five year immediately preceding the current year,

Othar squity
i) Retained Eamings

Asat Asm
Povicilors 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Surplus / Deficit in the Profit and Loss Account
Opening balance
Net Profit for the current year
Re-measurement gain/{loss) on post k benefit abl {net of tax)
Closing balance

Matureand puposesofreserves

Retained Eamings
nummnmnuummmmlmmdmamumummwmamm.‘ ' ings Includes re-measur gain/(loss) on cefinec
benefit cbiigations, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss.

135
364
Q.15

17,66

deci

P ~
/’\;‘.\\\\ &\f— "




Chethana Healthcare Solutians Private Uimited
Notes forming part of the | St for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amaunt in Millions, unless otherwae stated)

At At
Farticulars 33 March 2025 31 March 2024
Long term Short term Long term Short term
15 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 32)
Provisian for gratulty {unfunded) 05 Q40 a8t ane
Total a.63 010 o84 0.08
— ——— — =
17 Leate Liabiiity
Lusse Lisbility (Refer note 40) 4.00 126 ©.00 0.10
Torai ) 12 0% 010
18 Borrowings
Working capital lnan from Banklbecured):
Cash credit® Pin E ) .54
Loans and Advances from Related parties®* (Refer note 39) 15.00 36.80 5180
Total 15.00 62.13 - 7334
* Cash credit/ WCDL

Outstanding cash cedit and working copitsl fecity is 25 33 million (March 2024, INR 21 54 million  Secured against 25% margin on inventoties
and trage raceivables in addition 10 fed deposit to the extent of 20% of the facity amount & parl passy charge on entire current Jusets of
borrawer, prasent and future.

(Facility amount: Mareh 202550 million (March 2024: S0 million |; Rate of interest - 3 Month MCLR + 1 30% and WCDL 3t Interest rate of |
Month MCLR, Efoctive intarest rate for the yesr | 5.0 % pa (21 Masch 2024: 130 % pa.)

**Loan fram releted parties
The has avalled d short termy Iong term loan from Holding Company to be repaysble on demand and over & period of 5 yean,
resosctively. These loant carry 3 Intarest rate of 9.00% p.x (31 Marth 2024:13.00% pa )
The Sorrowings s obtained by the company has been used for the purnces st In sanction kettee/ torms
19 Trade payables
Asat
Pertioisiey 3 March2025 31 March2024
Total outstonding dues of micto antemrises and small enterprites 539
Totad g dues of creditors other than micre and small P 13867
Yotal 25.06
Trade payable ageing scheduls
As st R1ist March 2025
Outstanding for following from the date of transacton
"":' 12 years 23years | More than 3 yean
MSME 4.06 0.26 025 0.80
Other 1816 Mi 07 144
dues - MSME .
dues - Othery . T |
As 2t 115t March 2024
for years from the date of transaction
e “";'" Layears | 33years | Morethan3years
MSME [XT] . 3
Dther 13.40 140 198
does MSME .
dues - Others
Désriasune ralating to suppliers regictared under MSMED Act Basad on the inf ble with the G
Parscutars e
[A) Amount remaining unpaid to arcy supplier 3t the svd of sach aczounting yeer 53
Principal and interest 539
Total
(b] The smount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of tection 16 of the MSMED Act, slong with the .
amount of tha payment made 1o the supplier bayond the anponted day during each accounting vear
fc) The amount of interest due and peyable (or the year of delay in making payment (which have been .
paid but beyood the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the MSMED Act
{d) The amount of Interest accrued and remaining ungald at the end of ssch accounting year.
mmmdtm—mmmmummmmwummm
date when the interest dues abowe are sctually pald to the small enterprise. for the purpose of
i of a deductibl diture under section 13 of the MSMED Act.
Asmt
—31March2025 31 March 2024
20 Other financlal llabilities
Employwe llabiitties 111
Interest accrued but not due on ICD 10
Other pavables 255
Total ‘lil
21 Other current labilities
Statutory dus paysdle 049
Total 0.19




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amaount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

22 Revenue from operation

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sale of traded goods 502.68 521.10
Other operating incame 017 0.23
Total 502.85 52133

Particulars

Analysis of revenues by segments:
Trading of ph. tical and surgical products.

Revenue based on Geography
Domestic

Export

Total

Revenue based on timing of recognition
Revenue recognition at a point In time

Revenue recognition over year of time

Total

23 Other income
Gain on termination of Lease
Intarest on unwinding of securnty deposits
Miscellaneous Income
Total

24 Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Purchases of Stock-in-trade
Total

25 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Inventories at the baginning of the year
~Stock in trade

Lass: Inventories at the end of the year
-Stock in trade

Net decrease/ (Increase)

26 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Gratulty and compensated absences expenses (Refer note 32)
Staff welfare expenses
Total

27 Finance costs
Interest on borrowings
On bank loan
On loan from holding company (Refer note 39)
Processing charges
Interest on delayed Y pay
Corporate gurantse commission
Interest on lease liabilities
Total

28 Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Refer note 5 (A))
Amortization on right to use assets (Refer note 5 (8))
Total

\
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

29 Other expenses

For the year ended For the year ended

P 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rant 0.04 0.42
Legal and professional charges 0.49 0.55
Travelling expenses 0.78 0.85
Power and fuel 042 03¢
Repairs and maintenance 030 0.26
Distribution cost 157 .7
Printing and statlonery 062 0.65
Net Impairment losses on trade receivables/Financial assets 0.69 018
Provision for claim receivable 013 -
Communication expenses 011 0.14
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note below) 02s o10
Insurance 0.06 0.09
Business support services 0.66 185
Miscallaneous expenses 0.78 0.91
Total 8.90 .77

*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of taxes)

As auditor:
Statutory audit (Including Limitad review) fees

Total

30 Income Tax
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current tax of prior years

Total

Deferred tax expense (income)

Total

Reconclliation of tax charge

Profit before tax

Tax Rate

Income tax expanse at tax rates applicable
Goodwill impact

Permanent dissllowance

Others

Due to previous tax years

Income tax expense

31 Earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Comgany (A)
Weilghted Average number of shares issued for Basic EPS (8)
Adjustment for calculation of Diluted EPS (¢ )

Weighted Average number of shares issued for Diluted EPS (D= 8+C)
Baslc and Diluted EPS in Rs.
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Umited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

33 Contingent liabilities & commitments

(i) There are no contingent liabiiities & commitments as 3t 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

(Il)mmcwmlmnmmwmwlmmctdhnhudevﬁmmmnugtommpm:wﬂnﬂwds»wmcmmmdatad&myy
28, 2018 claritying the definition of 'basic wages' under Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and deal with it accordingly. In the
mdmmtheafusddmnerknotMvmhvudmiﬁamlmamdmdwv,mmvlﬁonhnhmmmhmsumm
Financial Statements.

Segment reporting
mem-renpmedmnmmnumﬂmxmthmentanﬂmomomvwlom(huwmmmuﬁn(m‘)dm
Company. The wholetime director of the Company acts as the (CODM). The Company operates only in one business segment L.e. trading of pharmaceutical and
surgical products and hance, the Company has only one reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments”,

Capital Management
meprmrvohler.uveofm:menVsaplnlmnnmmhtomnnnmnmzntaimxnmwmmrewmww.m

Company manages Its capital structure and makes adju In light of changes in ic conditions, annual operating plans and long term and other
wlmommlnordortomhuinorunumhoaphlstructuro.moCunmymayod]unthnmmotmwdwﬂmahom«m
new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed cpital requi No changes were made in the objectives, policies or pr for
managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. The Company monitors capital using 3 ratio of 'adjusted net debt’ 1o ‘squity’. For
Wspumcu.y.qumdnndobmdaﬂmd-wulll-bauu-gwmulmmtu.ﬂqh-mmbomw less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises
all components of equity including share premium and all other eaulty reserves attributable to the equity share holders.

The Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio s as follows.

Asat Asat

" 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Borrowings
Long term and Short term borrowings 7713 73.34
Less: cash and cash equivalents (0.57) {0.65)
Adjusted net debt 76.56 72.69
Total Equity 25.30 18.66
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio 3.03 3.89
Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require d in these fi |

~
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

37 Fair value measuraments

A. Accounting classification and fair values
The following tabie shows the camying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial asssts and
financial llabilities not measured at fair value If the carrying Isa ble appr of fair value,
Amount
Particulars Corryes
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost Total
Financlal assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2025
Non-current financial assets
Other financial assets - - 0.89 089
Current financial assets
Trade receivables - - 3863 38863
Cash and cash eguivalents . - as? 0.57
Total - - 40.09 40.09
Non-current financial liabilities
Borrowings 15.00 15.00
Lease liabilities 4,60 460
Current financial llabilities
Borrowing 62.13 6213
Trade payables - - 2506 25.06
Lease llabilities 1.26 126
Other financial labilities - - 4.79 4.79
Total - - 112.84 112.84
Carrying A it
e FVTPL  FVTOCI Amortized Cost Total
Financial assets and llabllities as at 31 March 2024
Non-current financial assets
Other financizl assets . - 123 13
Current financlal assets
Investment - - - -
Trade receivables . - 40.66 40.66
Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.65 0.85
Total - - 42.54 4254
Non-current financial liabilities
Borrowings - - - -
Lease labilities . . 0,00 0.00
Current financial Rabilities
Borrowings - . 73.34 7334
Trade payables - - 26.96 26.96
Lease Lisbilities = = 0.10 010
Other financial liabilities - . 9.66 9.66
Total - - 110,06 110,06
The Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, other bank bak , trade recaivables, trade payables app d their carrying value largely due to short term
maturities of these Instruments.
Financial Instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates and Individual
creditwarthiness of the counterparty. 8ased on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for expected losses of these receivables f any required.
Accordingly, falr value of such Instr Is not lly different from their carrying amounts.
C. Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of financial Instruments as referred to above have be=n classified into three categories depending on the Inputs usad In the valuation technique.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices In active markets for identical assets or llabllitles {Level 1 measurements) and lowest pricrity to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

Level 1: Levei 1 h y i I d using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments and mutual funds that have quoted
price. The fair value of all equity Instruments which are traded In the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting year.

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded In an active market is d d using vall hini which the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrumaent are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.
Lavel 3: If one or more of the significant Inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included In level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities Included In level 3,
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Umited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Stat for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Millians, unless otherwise stated)

38 Financial Risk Management
The company has in place hensive risk manage policy in order to identify measure, monitor and mitigate various risks pertaining to its business.
Along with the risk management palicy, an adequate Internal control system, commensurate to the size and complexity of its business, is maintained to align
with the philosophy of the Together they help in achieving the business goals and object) i with the company’s strategles to pr
Inconsistencies and gaps between its policies and practices. The Board of Directors/committtess revi the ad y and effec of the rigk
management policy and Internal canirol system. The comgany’s financial risk management is an Integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategles.
The comparny has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk
* Liquidity risk and
» Market rigk

(A) Credit Risk
Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss to the pany if 3 or party to a fi Instrument fails to meet Its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the company's trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

1) Trade and Othor Roceivables
Trade receivables are typically and are from eamed from customers located In India. Creadit risk has always been managed by the
company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of 1o which the compary grants credit
terms in the normal course of busines
S y of the compay's 10 credit risk by age of the 1g from various s as follows.
Trade Recaivable
Asat Asat
e 31March2025 31 March 2024
Unsecured
-Considered good 3863 40.66
“Considered doubttul 3.75 3.06
Gross Trade Receivables 4238 an
Less: Loss Allpwance (3.75) (3.06)
Not Trade Rocelvables 38 63 40.66
——

On account of adoption of ind AS 109, the company uses expected credit (oss model to assess the imp; loss. The ¥ the d credit
loss allawance as per simplified approach for trade qables based on availabl and mnmmm-smmummu.mm
information about the customer and the company s historical for cu. The has used a by 8 the

d cradit loss alk for trade receivables basad on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into historical cradit loss i nndis

based on the ageing of the receivable days and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

W) Loans and financial assets measured at amortized cost
Loans and given prises of Intar company loans hence the risk of default from these companies are remote. The Company monitors ach loans and

advances given and makes any specific provision wherever required.

Ui, Cash and bank balances

The company held cash and cash equivalent and other bank balance of Rs. 0.57 million at 31 March 2025 (11 March 2024: Rs. 0.65 million | The same are held
with bark and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating. Also, company Invests its short term surplus funds in bank fieed deposit which carry no
market tigks for short duration, therefore does not axpose the company ta credit risk.

Iv. Others
Apart from trade receivables Joans and cash and bank balances , the company has ne other financial assets which carries any significant credit risk.




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Sta for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amaount in Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

(8) Uquidity risk

Uquidity risk s the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in ing the cbligati fated with its fi ial labilities that are settied by defivering

cazh or anather financial assat. Tha |amchwmamm&mmm as far as possible, that it will have sufficiont fiquidity to meat its

nmmnmmdue.um«mwmmmmamwmwmmmmmmwum
a8 itors rolling f of the pany's liquidity position and cash and cash aquivalents an the basis of axpected cath flows.

(1) Maturities of financial Iabilities

The 1§ are the 7 W C maturities of financial labliities at the reporting date. The smounts are gross and undiscounted, and include

o \ vt Bacaihld

31 12028 o o _;:m one to five years '::'”.‘ Total

Lease llabilities in 5.30 - 7.07

Borrowings 6213 1500 - .13

Trade Payables 25.06 . s 25.06

Other financial labilities 479 - - 4.79

Total —93.75 2030 - 114,05

31 March 2024 " — m;:‘“ A :‘: Tutal

Lease liabilities 0.10 . - 010

Sorrowings 7334 . - 7334

Trade Payables 2686 - .

Other financial llablities 968 - - 9.66

Total 110.06 - - 110.06

(C) Market Risk

Market risk Is the risk that changes (n market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interast rates and aquity prices — will affect the company's income or the

value of s holdings of i lal instr The objective of market risk management s to manage and cantrol market risk exposures within acceptable

parameters, while optimising the retum, The pany’s expasure to, and I of, these risks is explained below.

(i) Foreign currency risk

mmmmummmmmu-nmuummmwm‘ due 1o ch In foreign exch rates. The company caters mainly to

the Indian Market . Most of the are ds in the 's f i y L. Rupees. Hence the company is not materially expased

to Forelgn Currency Risk.

(W) Interest rate risk
Intarast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of 3 financial instrument will fluctuate b of changes In market rates.
mmndhm”:wmmlnwmnu:hmnmmdhmmrmum

As at Asat
Particulers 21 Mareh 2025 31 March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 2533 .54
Flawd rate borrowings 5180 51.80

Sansitivity:
A ehange af 100 batls points in (nterest rates would have following impact on profit after tax and equity -

Particulars

Interest rates - Increase by 100 basls points *
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points *
* Holding all other variables constant




C Menithcare Solutions Private Limited
Nates forming part of the St lone Financlal St for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Milllans, unless otherwise stated)

38 Related Party Disclosures

A Nomas of related ond nature of relstionship:
‘Edﬁ IMHMNE
Holding company Entero Healthcare Solutions Umited

Fellow Subsidiary Companies Atrafa Haaltheare Solutians Privata Limatad
Avenir Ufecers Pharme Privete Umited
Avenues Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Barros Enterprises Private Umited

Calcutts Medisolutions Private Limited
Chethana Pharma Distributors Private Umited

Getwall Modicare Solution Private Limited
Gourav Medical Agencies Private Limited
laggl Enterprises Private Limited
Millenniutn Medisclutions Private Limited
New RRPD Private Limited

Rada Medisolutions Private Limited

5.5 Pharma Traders Private Uimited

Sai pharma distributors Private Limited
Saurashtra Medisolutlons Private Limited

Sasha Balajes Medisolutions Private Limited

Sre= Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Limited
Sn Parskva Pharma Distributors Private Umatad
56 Rarna Pharmaceutical Distributors Private Limited
| Srinivasa Lifecare Private Limitad

Sundarial Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Suprabhat Pharmaceuticals Private Limited
SVMED Solutions Private Limited

SVS Litesclonces Private Limited

Swam| Medisolutions Private Limied

Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Lmited
Western Healtheare Salutions Private Umited
Ujjain Maheshwari Pharma Distributors Private Limited
Quromed Litesciences Private Limited
Nimedio Pharma Private Limited

\T2
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L} Detalls of related transactions:
| Nature of Transaction lumdn-l-u..m, Forthe yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2035 31 March 2034

Chirag Medicare Solutions Private Limited 2148 1789
Chethans Pharma Private Limited 864 912
Novacare Healtheare Solutions Private Limited (12 0s1
Purchase of stock in trade Entero Healthcare Solutions Umited .75 7.8
Vasavi Medicare Solutions Private Limited 0.0
Sree Venkateshwara Medisolutions Private Umited - 0.24
Peerless Blotech Private Limited 0.13 :
Chirag Medicare Soiutions Private Limited 0.60 033
Sale of stock In trade
L Chethana Pharma Private Limited 0.66 0.08
I Loans repaid lh—owww 20.00 u_”]
L Loans taken Entero Heithcare Solutions Limited 20.00 20.00
[ ' | Entero Heaithcare Solutions Limited 504 559 |
r ‘ Itmwmm 50 J
expenie
l Cross carton |Entaro Heaithcare Sol Umited 218 198 |
| Corporate guarantees taken ]smwmw - 50.00

| Borrowings |Entero Healthcare Solutions Limited 5180 5180 |
| interest accriied and due on  [c Ly P . o S
rrowing
Curever Pharma Private Limited (0.01) lo.01)
Entero Healthcare Solutions Umited 0.60 248
T pohvie Peeriess Blotoch Private Limied 015 0s2
Private Uimited 0.00 0.02
[ Cross cange |Entero Kealthcare Solutions Limited 046 195 |
[ corporate gusrantees taken | Entero Healthcate Solutions Umited 50.00 21854 |
O, Key P 4
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Director Remuneration, —
Salares and Allowances -
Reimbursement of Expentes -
Koy managerial personne! who are under the employment of the Company are entitled to past benefits ised as per Ind AS 19 -
“Emplo fits’ In the fi | As these empl benefits are aded on the basis of actuarial valustion, the ssme s not
Included above Gratuity has been tomputed for the Company s 3 whole and hence excluded.
£ The transactions with related parties are made on tarms equivalent to those that prevall in arm’s length C g bal at the year
end are umiecured and settiement occurs in cash. This s unds each | year through examining the financial position of the related

party and the market in which the related party opsrates.
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Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount in Milllons, unless otherwise stated)

40 Disdosure related to Leases

Company as Lessas
(A} Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting year
Particulars As at 31 March 2028 As at 31 March 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 010 -
Additions 12.98 128
m (5.68) -
Depreciation charge for the year (1.50) (1.18)
Balance at the end of the year 5.90 0.10
-
(8) Change In carrying value of lease liabilities at the end of the reporting year
Balance at the beginning of the year 010 -
Additions 1227 126
Deletion (537) .
Payment of lease lizbilities (1.70) (123)
Finance cost during the year 0.56 0.97
Balance ot the end of the year 5.86 0.10
(C) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
Less than one year i 0.10
One to five years 531 :
More than five years - ‘
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at reporting year 7.07 0.10
Lease liabilities included In the st of fi lal position at the year ended 5.86 -
o) A gnised in of profit or loss
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Interzst on lease llablilities 056 0.07
Amotisation of right to use assets (1.50) (1.18)
(095) (113)
(€) gnised in the of cash flows
Total Cash outflow for leases 170 1.3.l_
4 vg of Goodwill
Goodwil is tested for impairment annually an 31 March avery year. Company operates in single segment/ CGU.
Th-rmahh-nmtohtﬁukbaudonmdhrvtlummmulm value in use. Fair value is the price that would be recaived to sell
an asset of paid to transfer a labllity In an orderly transaction b 3 participant at measurement date. Value in use is present value of future
cash flow expected to be derived from assets (CGU). The value in use is d using di d cash flows over & year of 5 years and Cash flows
beyond 5 years is d by cap g the future maintainable cash flows by an appropriate capitalisation rate and then discounted using
appropriate discount rate, This fair value measurement was categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on inputs in the valuation technique used.
Operating margins and growth rates for the five year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past exp and after desing the
financlal budgets/forecasts provided by the management. Other key assumptions used In the ion of the bl are set out below,
The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management's assessmant of future trends in the relevant industry and have been based on
hictorical data from both external and Internal sources.
Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 13 54% 15.85%
Terminal value growth rate 5.00% S.00%
Revenue growth rate 15.00% 15.00%
With regard to of bl , ho lably possibl ige In any of the above key assumptions would cost the carrying
amount of the CGU's to exceed their recoverable amount.
The Company has also performed sensitivity analysis caleulations on the projections used and di t rate applied, Company has concluded that, given
lheu(nllm'\nﬁrcunthnulmandmuewmdu\ewmmﬂwmlvlsm.m“runomlmmmkm'nmublcchmlnmhv
assumptions would cause the carrying value of goodwill to exceed its value in use.
—
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Chethara Haalthcare Solutions Private Limitad
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
[Amaunt in Millions, unless atherwise stated)

42 5 of foreign
The C has no foreign
43 Ratio Analysly
I As at At
Particulars Numerstor Denominator 51 Maseh 3025 21 March 2034 Vartance % Reason for variance
r]c‘n-xm Curront Acsets |Current Listilities 1.04 [+§.5] 21.53%
(o) Debtequiymatio.  |SOt termandlongtem o iers Equy uuw 3 L
ﬂ:&mm ::nummm Debit S 1 3 o
Average tznglble Due to increase in profit
(d) Return on Equity Ratio IM’rd’lAMYn et 028 018 2092 during the year
R LS
(e} Inventory turnover ratio| Cost of goads sald | Awnrage inventary (8.06%
(f) Trade Receivables Average Trade umi 1323 =
A Net cradn sales (L6
{8) Trade payables Average Trade 18, 16
Turhover ratio P ﬂ RN
Working Capral Dus to reciassification of
o-'.:i:-uonlm Sales I SE0TI% Borrwoings from short Leem
Current Liatilities) 14673 Jn_‘ﬂJ oo e
(1) Net proft ratio Y"u' g Setore inermst and | e Sates D4 00| 1IN
lwlmn--a.u ;.:u.w-nmu . a0%

A4 Disclosure required for borrowing based on security of current assets

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of As § crores, in aggrogate from banks of financial nstitutions on the bass of security of current assets.

The quarterly returns or filed by the C y with the such banks or financial i homs arw in ay with the books of accounts of the Company except as foliows:
Amount a4 reported in
Neme of Bank Anu:-nhd; the " / it Reason for material
Conrine account discrapancies
statement
Inventary S53% [T 001 [m & yeur end
31 June 2024 Axis Bank Crediton ( 631 |closing adi
Debitors 4567 004 5.63
imventory 63.41 8.07 0.34 [Reclasification & yesr and|
31 Septamber 2024 Axis Bank Creditors 1.73 |closing
Dabtors 4835 4834 0.00
Inventory 61.55 60.98 0.57 |Recasification & year end
31 Decemeber 2024 Axls Bank Croditon uuﬁl [ITY LK |cowng adjustments
Oebtors 44.00 24.00 0.00
Inventary §7.45 | 5681 053 [Reclssification & year end|
1 Mareh 2025 Axss Bank Creditors (25.06 (25.93 0.87 |closing sdy
Detrors nl Aual Ei]
45 Other Statutory information:
1/} Details of benami property held

The Company do not have sny Sanami property, where any o has been againat the C

(M) Retationships with struck off companies

The Company do not kave any transactions with companies struck off.

1) Regi of charges or with of

Tha Company dn not have any changes or satisfaction which s yet 10 be ragistared with BOC bayond the statutory petiod.
{iv) Details of crypto currency or virtusl currency

The Company have not traded o d In crypto y of vetual
(v} Utiisation of borrowings avalled from banks and financial imstitutions

y during the year

for holding any Benami property,

The Company have not or loan or funds 1o any other person(s) or entity(les). including foreign entities (i
ntermediary shail
(a) directly or indirectly lend of invest in other persans or entities identified In any manner wh

by or on behalf of the

(5] provide any guarantee, security ar the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiares.

The Company have not received any fund from any or ), i W foreign entities (funding party) with the
that the Company shall

I writing of otherwise)
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Nates forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(Amount (n Milllons, unless otherwise stated)
(Vi) Undisciosed income
m.c«mhumm-nm&m-hbhmuwdﬁhmuﬁdnmmmm;muumnmmmnmmmnn
W) WAl detaulter
The Compary has not been withyl def; by any bank or financial ingtitution of by any government authorities.
IMil) Compliance with number of layers of companies.
m:umhwumwwmmmm-amudm(mdmzdanmmd-am-mngummmwum,ma.mu
() with d of armangements
mcmmmwmmmmmmdmwmmmmmlmmwmuMMﬂm
NM“dMM‘Mhmdmm

The title deeds of all the | e properties (other than where the 15 the letses and the lease arrangements are duly executed In favour of the lesses] are held in
the name of the Cormpany during the current and previous yeer.

Lxi) Val of PPE, wibile assets and property

The han not revaiued it plant ang right of use assets) or Intangibie assets or both during the current or previous year

{xil) Backup of books of accounts

The Y uses softy Jm t Its books of wmbwbmmlnmmmwmdﬂ.mhm.hCmvhn
maintaned backups of these alactronic records on sarver physically located in India on daily basis, &3 d by C Rubes, 2014 {25 amended),

{uiil) Audit trall

The Ministry of Corparate Affairy (MCA) has ribed 3 now for under the provise 1o Rule 3{1) of the C: { Rules, 2014 insarted by the
& (A ) Amend: Rules 2021 requinng compa which uses for '8 113 books of sccounts, shall use only such accounting scftwars which

has & feature of recording audit trall of each and every tramsaction, m:ummdmmmmu%ﬂmmmnmmmmummm
and ensuring that the sudit trail cannot be disabled,

Company has used 3 1oty 1 for billing and bles, purchases and bles and ory 5 during the year ended March 31, 2025, which has a
festure of recording sudit trail (edit iog) faciity either at spplication level or t databese level.

46 The financial wer s auth d for issue by the company’s board of directors on May 24 ,2025.

47 Pravious year figures have been regrouped/ reciassified, where necessary, to conform 1o this year's chessification.

As par our report of even date

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chethana Hesfthcare Solutions Private Limited
CIN: USIS09KA2019PTCI122804

Fb— cmth

Vinayaka Praveen Mujumdar K E Prukash
Partner Ditector Director
Membership No:029132 DIN: 09469164 DIN: 01828357

UOIN: 250291 328MIRFVI725



Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

1. Company Information:
Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited (the “Company”) is a private limited company
incorporated in India on January 21" , 2020 having its registered office at Plot Century Commercial
Complex, 8-713/12/FF/8, Opp: Sangam Talkies, S.B Temple Road, Super Market, Kalburgi, Karnataka -

585 101.
The Company is a subsidiary of Entero Healthcare Solution Limited. The Holding company of Entero

Healthcare Limited is listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) & Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The
Company isin the business of distributions and marketing of pharmaceutical products, Surgical Produds
and other allied services.

2. Basis of Preparation, Measurement and material Accounting Policies:

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statement have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,

2016.
The Standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and on going concern basis

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following
material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:-
e Certain Financial assets are measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial

instruments);
 Employee’s Defined Benefit Plan as per actuarial valuation; and

e Share-based payments.

The Standalone financial statements comprise the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changesin Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year

ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024;

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires

a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The Standalone financial statements are approved by the Board of Directors on May 24, 2025.

The Standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), whichis also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest million, unless otherwise

indicated.




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies used in preparation of the standalone financial statements have been
included in the relevant notes to the standalone financial statements.

A. Current and non-current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets
An asset is classified as current when it satisfied any of the following criteria:
* itis expected to be realised in, or intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;
e itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itisexpectedtobe realised within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
e it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
Currentassetsinclude the current portion of non-currentfinancial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

Liabilities
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
* itisexpectedtoberealisedin, orintended forsale or consumption in, the Company's'normal
operating cycle;
* itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
e itisdue to be settled within 12 months after the balance sheet date; or
e the Companydoesnothave anunconditional right to defersettlement of theliability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.
Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of
equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

B. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Ma nagement to make
estimate and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date, reported amount of revenue and expenses for the year and disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying
financial statements are based upon the Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates, if any, are recognized in the year in whsch the estimates are revised and in any future years-




Chethana Healthcare Solutions Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the
assetto its working condition for the intended use. Anytrade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/

CGSTand SGST) orany othertax credit available to the company are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to prope rty,plantand equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefit associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

Borrowing costs tothe extent related/attributableto the acquisition/construction of property, plantand
egquipment thattakes substantial period of time to getready for theirintended use are capitalized up to
the date such asset is ready for use.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betweenthenet disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Depredation on plant, property and equipment

Depredation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straightline method at their respective
estimated useful lives, which is in line with the estimated useful lives as specified in Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Particulars Useful Life as per prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Act (year)

Leasehold Improvement* Lease Period

Computer and peripherals 3-6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Office equipment S5

Vehicle 8

Plant and Machineries 15

Electrical Installations and Equipment 10

*Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of the lease or uselful life whichever is lower.

| Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of
acquisition. De preciation on sale/deduction from property plant and equipmentis provided up to the date
preceding the date of sale, deduction as the case may be. Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparin
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

2.3 Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost comprises purchase price, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use which includes any trade discounts, rebates, input tax credit (IGST/ CGST and SGST)
or any other tax credit available to the co mpany are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Borrowing costs to the extentrelated/attributable to the acquisition/construction of intangible asset that
takes substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized fromthe date it meets
capitalization criteria till such asset is ready for use.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial yearend. If
the expected useful life of the assetis significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization
period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

A summary of amortization period applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Useful life (years)
Computer software 5-10

2.4 Fair value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurementis based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Kability
accessible to the Company.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficientdata are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. The Company's management determines the policies and
procedures for fair value measurement.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue from Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives, price
concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar items, if any, as specified n
the contract with the customer. Revenueis recorded provided the recovery of consideration is probable
and determinable. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is recognized ata pointin time when the goods and consumables are delivered at the agreed
point of delivery.

Invoices are usually payable based on the credit terms agreed with customers which vary up to 90
days.

Other Income
Interestincome is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and

the applicable interest rate. Interest Income is recognised on a basis of effective interest method as set
out in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, and where no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

Marketing Support
Marketing support income is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
incentives, performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or
othersimilar items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenueis recorded provided
the recovery of cansideration Is probable and determinable.
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Notes forming part of the Standalone FiInancinl Statements
(Amount in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

2.6 Taxes

Currentand deferred tax Is recognlzedin Statement of Profit and | 045, Aceptto the etert that it relates
to Items recognized in othar comprehensive Incoma or directly In aquity. In this case, the tax is also
recognized In other comprehensive Income or directly In cquity, respectively,

a) Current Income Tax:

Current tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expectedto be recovered ar paid to the
taxation authoritios, Thae tax ratas and tax laws used to compute the amount ara those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the year end date, Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the
entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends elther to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
assct and settle the liabllity simultancously,

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred Income tax s provided In full, using the balance sheet approach, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and llabllitles and thelr carrylng amounts In financial statements.
Deferred income tax s also not accounted for if It arises from Initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss), Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the year and are expected to apply
when the related deferred Income tax asset s realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differencesand unused tax lossesonl f

it is probable that future taxable amounts will be avallable to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken In tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation Is subject to Interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thereis alegally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.7 Intanglble asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs s based on management’s jJudgement that technological
and economic feasibility Is conflrmed, usually when a product development project has reached a
defined milestone according to an established project management model. In determiningthe amounts
to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of
the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
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2.8 Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for warehouse and office. The Comparry
assesses whetheracontract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, alease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
Company has substantially all of the economicbenefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease
term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shal
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the
underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets
is subsequently measuredat cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if
any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated
using the straightline method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life
of right-ofuse asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of use assets are determined on the same basis
as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measuresthe lease liability at the presentvalue of the lease payments that are not paid

at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,

the Company uses incremental borrowing rate Company, onalease by lease basis, may adopt eitherthe

incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowingrate for the portfolio as

a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value
guarantees, exercise pfice of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercke

that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercisingan option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing

the carrying amount to reflectinterest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amountto reflect the
lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease

modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the
amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-
use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assetis reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-
measurement in statement of profit and loss.

Forleases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Lease liability and ROU assethave been separately
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.
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Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected notto recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of properties
that are having non-cancellable lease term of less than 12 months. The Company recognises the lease
payments assodated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.9 Inventories

2.10

The inventory comprises of traded goods which are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value,
Cost of inventory of traded goods is arrived based on actual cost by batch which comprises cost of
purchasesand all other costs incurredin bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Netrealisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered
necessary.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each year end whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial
asset or a Company of non financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset's recoverable amount and the amount of impairment loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available foruse, are tested for

impairment annually at each balance sheet date, or earlier, if there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and recoverable
amount. Losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss and reflected in an allowance account.
Whenthe Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amountsare written off. If the amount of impairmentloss subsequently decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, then the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

The recoverable amountof anasset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets are Companied together into the smallest Company of assets that generates cash in flows from
continuing use thatare largely independent of the cash inflows of other assetsor Company of assets (the
“Cash-Generating Unit” - CGU).
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2.11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is
probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation

that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation
cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements,
2,12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and short-temm
deposits net of bank overdraft with an original maturity of three months orless, which are subjecttoan
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents forthe purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand
and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months.

2.13 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(A) Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, financial assetis measured atits fair value plus, in the case of a financial assetnot
“at fair value through profit or loss” are measured at transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(ii) Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

a) at amortized cost; or
b) at fair value through other comprehensive income; or
c) at fair value through profit or loss.
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The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the related cash flows.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
fromthese financial assetsis included in finance income usingthe effective interest rate method (EIR).

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and forselling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amounts are taken through Other Comprehensive Income (‘OCT),
except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to
Statement of Profit and Loss and recognizedin other gains/ (losses). Interestincome fromthese financial
assets is included in “Other income” using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meetthe criteriafor amortized cost or FVOQ
are measured at fair value through statement of profit and loss. Interest income from these financial

assets is included in “Other income”.

Equity instruments: All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in OCl subsequent changes in
the fair value in other comprehensive income . The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from
0Cl to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer

the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets that are measured at

amortized cost and FVOCI.
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For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whetherthere has been asignificant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has
Inot increased significantly, 12-month ECL s used to provide forimpairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If In subsequent years, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then
the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL

Life time ECLs are the expected creditlosses resulting from all possible default eventsover the expeded
life of a financial instrument. The 12month ECLis a portion of the lifetime ECLwhich results from defaut
events that are possible within 12 months after the year end.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Companyinaccordance with
the contract and all the cash flows thatthe entity expects toreceive (i.e.allshortfalis), discountad at the
original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension etc.) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannaot e
estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument,

In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition # the
payment is more than 90 days past due.

ECLimpairment loss allowance (orreversal) recognized during the yearis recognized as income /expersa
in the statement of profit and loss. Inbalance sheet ECL for financial assets measured at amonized coss
is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those assetsinthe halines
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized only when

a) the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is transferred or

b) retains the contractualrights toreceive the cash flows of thefinancial asset, butassumes 3 contractuad
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the financial asset Is transferred then in that case financal asset s derecognized only
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is transferred Where the entty
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset |s not derecognized.

(B) Financial liabllitles

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Finandal liabllities are classified, at Initial recognition, as financial kabilities at falr value through proft
or loss and at amortized cost, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and Payables,
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(ii)Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effectve
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

Afterinitial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortzed
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as wellasthrough the EIR amortization process. Amortized costis calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by anotherfromthe same lenderon substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated asthe derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabTty.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as

finance costs.

(C) Embedded Derivatives
An embedded derivative Is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-

derivative host contract — with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrumentvary
in a way similar to a standalone derivative. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are
separated if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to the economic characteristics and risks of the host and are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required ora reclassification of a financal assetout of

the fair value through profit or loss.

(D) Offsetting financlal Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offsetand the netamountisreported in the balance sheetwhere there

Is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there Is an intention to settle on a
net basls or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
notbe contingenton future events and must be enforceable inthe normal course of business and inthe

event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty. A
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2.14 Employee Benefits

(a) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expectedto be settled wholy

within 12 months after the end of the year in which the employees render the related service are
recognized inrespect of employees’ services up to the end of theyearand are measuredat the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(b) Otherlong-term employee benefit obligations
(i) Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the
Companydoes not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis

which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees' state insurance schemeis made
tothe regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified
as Defined Contribution Schemes asthe Company doesnot carry any further obligations, apart fromthe
contributions made on a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

(i) Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the 'Gratuity Plan") covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum paymenttovested employees atretirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment,
of an amount based on the respective employee's salary. The Company's liability is actuarially
determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are
recognized in the other comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense orincome is recognized in profit or loss.

The obligation recognized in the balance sheetrepresents the actual deficit or surplus in the Com pany’s
defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductionsin future contributions
to the plans.

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The
obligation towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences

as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the yearend,
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Accumulated compensated abse nces, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
fromthe end of the year end are treated as otherlong term employee benefits, The Company's liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/gains are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

Leaves under define benefit plans can be encashed only on discontinuation of service by employee.

2.15 Foreign Currency Transactions

2.16

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Com pany’s functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Oninitial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign curre ney
amount the exchange rate between the functional curre ncy and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. Gains/Losses arising out of fluctuation in foreign exchange rate between the transaction
date and settlement date are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are restated at the yearend at the exchange rate

prevailing at the year end and the exchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Eamnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus
elementin the rightsissue, sharesplitand reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding, without corresponding ch ange in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilutive equity shares.
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2.17

217

Exceptional items

The Company considers exceptional items to be those which derive from events or transactions which
are significant for separate disclosure by virtue of their size or incidence in orderfor the userto obtain
a proper understanding of the Company’s financial performance. These items include, but are not
limited to, acquisition costs, impairment charges, restructuring costs and profits and losses on disposal
of subsidiaries and other one-off items which meet this definition. To provide a better understanding of
the underlyingresults of the year, exceptional items are reported separately in the Statement of Profi
and Loss.

Share based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to the employees via the Share based long term
incentive scheme.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grantis made
using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in share options outstanding account in equity, overthe period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each reporting date untilthe vesting date reflects the extenttowhichthe vesting
period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profitand loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted eamings per share.

Significant accounting Judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disdosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could resultin outcomesthatrequire a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future years.

3.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the year
end date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustmenttothe carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next finandial year, are described below. The Company basedits assumptions
and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
drcumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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i) Recognition of deferred tax assets & Liabilities;

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.The ultimate realization of deferred tax assetsis dependent upon the generation of future taxable
profits during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards become
deductible. The Company considers the expectedreversal of deferredtax liabilities and projected future
taxable income in makingthis assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable,
however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-
forward period is reduced.

i) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits and leave encashment)

The cost of the defined benefit plans such as gratuity and leave encashment are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developmentsin the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each year end.

The principal assumptionsare the discount and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the
market yields available on government bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of
liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors on long term basis.

iii) Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the
accounting policy. Initial capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technologicd
and economicfeasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development project hasreached a defined
milestone according to an established project management model. In determining the amounts to be
capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

iv) Impairment of Non Financlal Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determinatoon of

a suitable discount rate.

e
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v) Sales Return

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording sales return provision concurrent with the
recognition of revenue at the time of a product sale. This liability is based on the Company’s estimate of
expected sales returns. Accordingly, the estimate of sales returns is determined primarily by the
Company’s historical experience of sales returns.

At the time of recognising the sales return provision, the Company also recognises purchase retum
provision, an asset, (i.e., the right to the returned goods) which is included in Other Current assets for
the products expected tobe returned. The Company initially measures this asset at the former carrying
amountof the inventory, less any expected costs to recoverthe goods, including any potential decreases
in the value of the returned goods. Along with re-measuring the refund liability at the end of each
reporting period.

The Company updatesthe measurement of the assetrecorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

vi) Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

vil) Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past history, customers
creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting periods.

viii) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significa nt judgement in
assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
optionto extendalease, or not to exercise an option toterminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economicincentive for the Companyto exercise the option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if
there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.
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4. Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards oramendmentsto the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
March 31, 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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